
1 

PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson @co.polk.wi.us 

Minutes 
General Government Committee 

    County Board Room 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

   10:00 a.m. Thursday, November 9, 2017 

Meeting called to order by Chair Masters at 10:03 a.m. 
Members present 

Attendee Name Title Status 
Brian Masters Chair Present 
Russ Arcand Vice Chair Present 
Dean Johansen Supervisor Present 
Larry Jepsen Supervisor Absent 
Chris Nelson Supervisor Present 

Also present: Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Dana Frey, County Administrator; Andrea Jerrick, Deputy 
County Administrator/Employee Relations Director; Pete Johnson, Sheriff;  Wes Revels, Chief Deputy;  
and member of the press. Jeff Fuge, Corporation Counsel joined meeting at 10:12 a.m. 

Approval of Agenda- Chair Masters called for a motion to approve amended agenda as noticed. Motion 
(Johansen/Arcand) to approve agenda. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to approve 
amended agenda as noticed. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Approval of Minutes- Chair Masters called for a motion to approve the minutes of the October 12, 2017 
meeting. Motion (Johansen/Masters) to approve October 12, 2017 minutes as published. Chair Masters 
called for a voice vote on the motion to approve October 12, 2017 minutes.  Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 

Public Comment – Time was given for public comment. No public comment was received. 

Chair Masters declared Closed Session will be next item on agenda. 

*CLOSED SESSION* -- 10:04 a.m. – (Minutes Separate and under seal)

Motion (Arcand/Johansen) to go into closed session pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section 19.85(1)(e) 
at 10:04 a.m. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to go into closed session. Motion 
carried by unanimous voice vote.  

*Reconvened in Open Session at 11:28 a.m.*

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 

Announcements 

Committee received information and updates on the Highway Facility from Deputy 
Administrator Jerrick. Dirt work is being completed and footings scheduled for November 13, 
2017. Supervisor Nelson asked that change orders be emailed to Board members. 
Committee received print out of Subchapter 5.6 Management of County Owned Real Estate from 
Administrator Frey that sets forth procedures for disposition of tax deed property and outlines changes 
to provide consistent means of handling county owned real estate. 

Action Items 

Recommendation on Resolution No. 75-17: Resolution to Adopt the Polk County Operating and Capital 
Budget for the Calendar Year 2018 and to Set the 2018 Tax Levy 

Motion (Johansen/Masters) to amend Resolution No. 75-17 as follows: 

Page 5, after line 39, insert a new paragraph to read: 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, notwithstanding any appropriation to any nonprofit in this resolution 
and any indirect funding through subsidized costs for space utilization, the county administrator may not 
allocate funding to any nonprofit or renew any lease for space utilization pending a finding that this 
appropriation or lease complies with Wisconsin Statutes, with such finding reported to the County 
Board.  

Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to amend Resolution No. 75-17 and recommend 
passage of amendment to County Board. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Motion (Johansen/Nelson) to further amend Resolution No. 75-17 to recommend technical 
amendments to 2018 Budget Ceiling –Administration Technical Amendment 1 – Revenues: Increase 
State of Wisconsin Shared Revenues by $6,387 and Decrease Levy Support by $6,387 and Administration 
Technical Amendment 2 – revenues: Increase levy by $6,387. 

Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to further amend Resolution No 75-17 
recommending technical amendments to 2018 Budget Ceiling to County Board. Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  

Motion (Johansen/Masters) to recommend Resolution No. 75-17 as amended for passage to County 
Board. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to recommend Resolution No. 75-17 as 
amended for passage to County Board. Motion carried by majority voice vote with one no vote (Nelson 
voting no). 

Recommendation on Resolution No. 76-17: Resolution Concerning Pheasants Forever Acquisition of 
Lands Located in the Town of Alden – Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program Funds.  

Motion (Johansen/Masters) to move Resolution 76-17 to County Board with no recommendation. Chair 
Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to move Resolution 76-17 to County Board with no 
recommendation. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  



3 

Motion (Arcand/Johansen) to bring Ordinance No. 58-17 to floor for consideration and 
recommendation.  Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion. Motion carried by unanimous 
voice vote.  

Committee received copy of Ordinance No. 48-13: Ordinance to Declare the County of Polk Self-
Organized and Resolution No.46-15: Resolution to Fix Compensation of County Board Supervisors and 
Citizen Committee Members Commencing April 2016 Term from Corporation Counsel Fuge for 
information regarding per diems and compensation. 

Recommendation on Ordinance 58-17: Amending Ordinance to Declare the County of Polk Self-
Organized (County Board Compensation for Term 2018-2020) was discussed. Motion (Nelson/Masters) 
to move to Committee of the Whole for further discussion and to County Board for action without 
committee recommendation. Motion to move Resolution 58-17 to the County Board without 
recommendation carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Compensation of Board of Supervisors for 2018 to 2020 term to be discussed in Committee of the 
Whole at County Board Meeting.  

Future Agenda Items 

Next meeting Thursday, December 14, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 

Adjourn 

Motion (Johansen/Arcand) to adjourn. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. 
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Meeting adjourned 12:28 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Sharon E. Jorgenson 
County Clerk  



PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
 W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 
 

**SECOND AMENDED* AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room 

Thursday, November 9th, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.  
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

 
 Materials:  October 12th, 2017, Minutes 

10:00 
 

1. Call to order  
a. Approval of agenda  
b. Approval of minutes for October 12, 2017 

 
Brian 
Masters 

10:05 2.  Public comment (3 minutes)  

10:10 3. Announcements and committee information 
a. Updates on Highway Facility 
b. Procedure for disposition of tax deed property 

4. Action Items 
a. Recommendation on Resolution 75-17: Resolution to Adopt the Polk County 

Operating and Capital Budget for the Calendar Year 2018 and To Set the 2018 Tax 
Levy 

b.  Resolution No. 76-17:  Resolution Concerning Pheasant Forever Acquisition of 
Lands Located in the Town of Alden -  Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program 
Funds 

c. *Compensation of Board of Supervisors for 2018 to 2020 Term 
d. * Ordinance No. 58-17: Amending Ordinance to Declare the County of Polk Self-

Organized (County Board Compensation for Term 2018-2020) – Re-referred from 
October 17, 2017, County Board meeting 

5. ** Closed Session: 
a. Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section 19.85(1)(e), the Committee may 
convene in closed session for purposes of considering collective bargaining 
strategy, review and/or negotiation of labor agreement benefits/contracts 
including negotiation of WPPA – Field Services labor agreement commencing 
January 1, 2018:, the conduct of said specified public business, due to competitive 
or bargaining reasons, require a closed session. Following the closed session, the 
Committee will convene in open session to give an announcement on matters 
considered in closed session and to consider and act upon matters noticed herein 
for consideration and action in open session. 

 

Dana 
Frey 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Andrea 
Jerrick 

 

 

 

11:00 
 

6. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings  
7. Adjourn 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at least 24 
hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests 
are confidential. 
 

 
 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
 W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 
 

 
*AMENDED* AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

County Board Room 
Thursday, November 9th, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.  
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

 
 Materials:  October 12th, 2017, Minutes 

10:00 
 

1. Call to order  
a. Approval of agenda  
b. Approval of minutes for October 12th, 2017 

 
Brian 
Masters 

10:05 2.  Public comment (3 minutes)  

10:10 3. Announcements and committee information 
a. Updates on Highway Facility 
b. Procedure for disposition of tax deed property 

4. Action Items 
a. Recommendation on Resolution 75-17: Resolution to Adopt the Polk County 

Operating and Capital Budget for the Calendar Year 2018 and To Set the 2018 Tax 
Levy 

b.  Resolution No.76-17:  Resolution Concerning Pheasant Forever Acquisition of 
Lands Located in the Town of Alden -  Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program 
Funds 

c. *Compensation of Board of Supervisors for 2018 to 2020 Term 
d. * Ordinance No. 58-17: Amending Ordinance to Declare the County of Polk Self-

Organized (County Board Compensation for Term 2018-2020) – Re-referred from 
October 17, 2017, County Board meeting 

 

Dana 
Frey 

 

11:00 
 

5. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings  
6. Adjourn 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at least 24 
hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests 
are confidential. 
 

 
 

 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
 W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 
 

 
AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

County Board Room 
Thursday, November 9th, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.  
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

 
 Materials:  October 12th, 2017, Minutes 

10:00 
 

1. Call to order  
a. Approval of agenda  
b. Approval of minutes for October 12th, 2017 

 
Brian 
Masters 

10:05 2.  Public comment (3 minutes)  

10:10 3. Announcements and committee information 
a. Updates on Highway Facility 
b. Procedure for disposition of tax deed property 

4. Action Items 
a. Recommendation on Resolution 75-17: Resolution to Adopt the Polk County 

Operating and Capital Budget for the Calendar Year 2018 and To Set the 2018 Tax 
Levy 

b.  Resolution No. 76-17:  Resolution Concerning Pheasants Forever Acquisition of 
Lands Located in the Town of Alden -  Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program 
Funds 

 

Dana 
Frey 

 

11:00 
 

5. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings  
6. Adjourn 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at least 24 
hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests 
are confidential. 
 

 
 

 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


1 
 

PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson @co.polk.wi.us 

Minutes 
General Government Committee 

                            County Board Room 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

              3:00 P.M. Thursday, October 12, 2017 
 

Meeting called to order by Chair Masters at 3:00 P.M. 
Members present: 
 
Attendee Name Title Status 
Brian Masters Chair Present 
Russ Arcand Vice Chair Present 
Dean Johansen Supervisor Absent 
Larry Jepsen Supervisor Present 
Chris Nelson Supervisor Present 
   
Also present: Stephanie Fansler, Deputy County Clerk; Dana Frey, County Administrator; Andrea Jerrick, 
Deputy County Administrator/Employee Relations Director; Jeff Fuge, Corporation Counsel; Maggie 
Wickre, Finance Director; Emil Norby Highway Commissioner; and members of the public and of the 
press. 
                                                                       
Approval of Agenda- Chair Masters called for a motion to approve agenda. Motion (Jepsen/Masters)                                   
to approve agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Approval of Minutes- Chair Masters called for a motion to approve the minutes of the September 14, 
2017 meeting. Motion (Masters/Jepsen) to approve September 14, 2017 minutes. Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment –One public comment received. 

Announcements-Committee received information from Administrator Frey regarding the Highway 
resolutions - they have been through the other committees. 

a. Commissioner Norby talked about construction bid packet #2. 
b. Supervisor Nelson shared information about his visit to the Polk County Information Center and 

expressed his concern about the information received at the September14, 2017 committee, from 
the Tourism director having no ties to what the committee requested. Nelson asked the record 
reflect that he thought the information received from the Tourism Director was misleading. 

Discussion Items-Finance options for the new Highway facility. Administrator Frey provided and in-
depth Power Point presentation of options for financing the construction of the New Highway facility. 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

Action Items – 
     Recommendation on the 2018 capital and operation budget including amendments to the         
administration’s recommendation: 

• Motion (Arcand/Jepsen) to recommend $25,000 for computer and board room technology for 
the board members carried by unanimous voice vote. 

•  Motion (Arcand/Jepsen) to not recommend $10,000 for County Clerk office security 
(redundant) carried by unanimous voice vote. 

•  Motion (Nelson/Arcand) to not recommend $10,000 to provide planning assistance to Salvation 
Army (non-compliance with outside agency policy) carried on voice vote of 3-1.  

•  Motion (Jepsen/Masters) to recommend all 5 IT technical amendments carried by unanimous 
voice vote. 

•  Motion (Nelson/Masters) to recommend a reduction in the Tourism budget by $14,000 failed 
on a 2-2 voice vote. 

•  Motion (Masters/Arcand) to not recommend $2,500 for Tourism to create a new web site 
carried on a 3-1 voice vote. 

•  Motion (Jepsen/Masters) to recommend the General Government budget as amended and 
recommend passage to the full Polk County Board carried on a 3-1 voice vote. 

•  Motion (Jepsen/Masters) to recommend passage of all other committee budgets, as presented, 
to the full County Board carried by unanimous voice vote. 

    Ordinance 58-17- Motion (Jepsen/Masters) Amending Ordinance to Declare the County of Polk Self-
Organized and recommend passage to the full Polk County Board.  Discussion.  Motion failed on a 1-3 
voice vote.  

Resolution 59-17 Motion (Jepsen/Arcand) to Affirming Polk County as Sponsor and Managing 
Coordinator of the Stower Seven Lakes State Trail and recommend passage to the full county board.  
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Resolution 60-17 – Motion (Nelson/Arcand) to authorize Demolition of Polk County Fairground 
Grandstand. Discussion. Motion (Jepsen/Masters) to amend the resolution as follows: Page1, line 22, 
strike “public improvement project” and insert “the County Administrator to collect bids”. Page 1, line 
22, after “Fairgrounds” insert “with options to salvage material as practical”. Page 1, strike lines 23 
through 24. 
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  Motion (Nelson/Arcand) to recommend passage of Resolution 
60-17, as amended, to the full Polk County Board carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Resolution 66-17- Motion (Nelson/Masters) to recommend  Resolution to Authorize Lease Agreement 
with the WI DOT.  Discussion. Motion (Jepsen/Nelson) to amend the resolution by adding Road Salt 
Storage Facility after line 22.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  Motion (Nelson/Masters) to 
recommend Resolution to Authorize Lease Agreement with the WI DOT, as amended, carried by 
unanimous voice vote. Motion (Jepsen/Masters) to send this resolution on to the Executive Committee 
without a recommendation. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Resolution 68-17-Motion (Jepsen/Masters) to send resolution to Adopt Project Budget and to Authorize 
Expenditures for Highway Garage Project on to the Executive Committee without recommendation. 
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 



3 
 

Resolution 71-17 – Motion (Arcand/Masters)to recommend Resolution 71-17 to Transfer Funds from 
the Sales Tax Fund to the General Fund and to Transfer General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance to the 
Highway Facility Capital Project Account.  Discussion.  Motion (Nelson/Masters) to amend the resolution 
by adding $1,000,000 of cash from the General Fund was defeated by 2-2 voice vote. Motion to 
recommend Resolution 71-17 to the full Polk County Board was defeated by a voice vote of 2-2. 

Resolution 69-17 – By unanimous consensus of the members present, the committee recommended 
Resolution 69-17 Authorizing the Issuance and Establishing Parameters for the Sale of Not to Exceed 
$18,385,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2017 be sent to the Executive Committee. 

Resolution 72-17 – Motion (Arcand/Nelson) to recommend resolution 72-17 Authorizing Involvement in 
Opioid Litigation, to the full Polk County Board. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings – none identified. 

Motion (Arcand/Jepsen) to adjourn.  Chair Masters declared the meeting adjourned at 6:30 P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted 

Stephanie M. Fansler,  
Deputy Polk County Clerk 

 

 

 

 
























































































































	Gen Government Agenda 11-9-17
	Gen Gov Minutes 10-12-with Stower
	Res 75-17 Resolution to Adopt Polk Co Operating & Capital Budget for the Year 2018 and to Set the 2018 Tax Levy
	Res 76-17 Resolution Concerning Pheasants Forever Acquisition of Lands in Town of Alden

